
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
2551 W Avenue H 

Lancaster, CA 93536 

www.avaqmd.ca.gov 

Governing Board Regular Meeting 

Agenda 
MEETING LOCATION 

Antelope Valley Transit Authority 

District Office 

42210 6th Street West 

Lancaster, CA 93534 

661.723.8070 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster 

Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale 

Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County 

Howard Harris, Los Angeles County 

Ken Mann, City of Lancaster 

Andrea Alarcón, City of Palmdale 

Newton Chelette, Public Member 

IF YOU CHALLENGE ANY DECISION REGARDING ANY OF THE LISTED PROPOSALS 

IN COURT, YOU MAY BE LIMITED TO RAISING ONLY THOSE ISSUES YOU OR 

SOMEONE ELSE RAISED DURING THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PERIOD REGARDING 

THAT PROPOSAL OR IN WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE DELIVERED TO THE 

GOVERNING BOARD TELEPHONICALLY OR OTHERWISE ELECTRONICALLY AT, OR 

PRIOR TO, THE PUBLIC HEARING. 

DUE TO TIME CONSTRAINTS AND THE NUMBER OF PERSONS WISHING TO GIVE 

ORAL TESTIMONY, PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES PER 

SPEAKER.  YOU MAY WISH TO MAKE YOUR COMMENTS IN WRITING TO ASSURE 

THAT YOU ARE ABLE TO EXPRESS YOURSELF ADEQUATELY. 

ALL SCHEDULED ITEMS WILL BE HEARD AT THE ANTELOPE VALLEY TRANSIT 

AUTHORITY (AVTA) DISTRICT OFFICE, 42210 6TH STREET WEST, LANCASTER, CA 

93534 AND THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION(S), IF APPLICABLE. PLEASE NOTE 

THAT THE BOARD MAY ADDRESS ITEMS IN THE AGENDA IN A DIFFERENT ORDER 

THAN THE ORDER IN WHICH THE ITEM HAS BEEN POSTED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ANY AGENDA ITEM WILL BE HEARD AT THE TIME OF 

DISCUSSION OF THE AGENDA ITEM.  PUBLIC COMMENTS NOT PERTAINING TO 

1 of 86



2 

AGENDA ITEMS WILL BE HEARD DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD BELOW.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDIZED ITEMS MAY BE SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL TO 

PUBLICCOMMENT@AVAQMD.CA.GOV  AT LEAST TWO HOURS PRIOR TO THE 

START OF THE MEETING. 

2 of 86



3 

CALL TO ORDER  10:00 A.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 

Items with potential Conflict of Interests — If you believe you have a conflict of interest, 

please recuse yourself at the appropriate time. If you have a question regarding a potential 

conflict of interest, please contact District Counsel. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Pursuant to Government Code Sections

54954.5(e) and 54957(b) Title:  Executive Director/APCO.

CONSENT CALENDAR 

The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be 

acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion unless a Board Member requests 

an item be held for discussion under DEFERRED ITEMS. 

2. Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of January 17, 2023.

Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item

3. Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California

Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks,

Executive Director/APCO.

4. Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental

Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive

Director/APCO.

5. Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of $196,029.15 for FY23

Quarter 2 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does

not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.

6. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for

information concerning the fiscal status of the District at December 31, 2022. Find

that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item Presenter:

Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

DEFERRED ITEMS 

NEW BUSINESS 

7. Receive and file the annual financial audit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is complete and

presented for review. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not

apply to this item. Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.

8. 1) Award an amount not to exceed $31,500 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions 

Program (AB 2766) funds to Michelle Royal for the replacement of an older diesel 

3 of 86



4 

tractor with a new, zero-emissions electric tractor; 2) Authorize the Executive 

Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 

applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and 

staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an 

agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) Find 

that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item. 

Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 

9. 1) Award an amount not to exceed $42,138 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions 

Program (AB 923) funds to Robert Dedmore for the replacement of an older diesel 

tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO 

the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding 

sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate 

target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved 

as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item. Presenter: Julie 

McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 

10. Reports:  Governing Board Counsel, Executive Director/APCO, Staff.

11. Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items.

12. Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, March 21, 2023.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is 

needed to participate in the Board Meeting, please contact the Executive Director 

during regular business hours at 661.723.8070 x22.  Notification received 48 hours 

prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodations.  All 

accommodation requests will be processed swiftly and resolving any doubt in favor of 

accessibility. 

I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that this agenda has been posted 72 hours prior 

to the stated meeting in a place accessible to the public. Copies of this agenda and any or 

all additional materials relating thereto are available at www.avaqmd.ca.gov or by 

contacting Adrianna Castaneda at 661.723.8070 ext. 21 or by email at 

acastaneda@avaqmd.ca.gov. 

Mailed & Posted on:  Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Adrianna Castañeda 
Adrianna Castaneda 

4 of 86



5 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve Minutes 

from Regular Governing Board Meeting of January 17, 2023. Find that the California 

Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

5 of 86



Draft Minutes

Draft Minutes 01.17.2023

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023
ANTELOPE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY DISTRICT OFFICE

LANCASTER, CA

Draft Minutes

Board Members Present:
Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster 
Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale
Newton Chelette, Public Member 
Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County 
Ken Mann, City of Lancaster 
Andrea Alarcón, City of Palmdale

Board Members Absent:
Howard Harris, Los Angeles County

The swearing-in of new Board Member City of Palmdale Mayor Pro Tem ANDREA ALARCÓN occurred 
prior to the meeting. Legal Counsel ALLISON BURNS swore-in new Board Member ANDREA ALARCÓN.    

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair CRIST called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Chair CRIST asked Board Member ALARCÓN to lead 
the Pledge of Allegiance. Chair CRIST called for roll call, roll call was taken.  

Election of Vice-Chair of the Governing Board for 2023.

Chair CRIST called for nominations for Vice Chair of the Governing Board for 2023.  Board Member MANN 
nominated Board Member BISHOP for Vice Chair, seconded by Board Member HAWKINS, and carried 
unanimously, Board Member BISHOP was elected Vice Chair for 2023.   

PUBLIC COMMENT

 Chair CRIST called for PUBLIC COMMENT.  At this time, no public comment was made in person, or
electronically, moved onto CONSENT CALENDAR.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Agenda Item #1 – Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of December 20, 2022. 
Upon motion by Board Member ALARCÓN, seconded by Board Member BISHOP, and carried by the 
following roll call vote, with five AYES votes by Board Members, AUSTIN BISHOP,  NEWTON 
CHELETTE, MARVIN CRIST, RON HAWKINS and KEN MANN, with Board members HOWARD 
HARRIS absent and Board member ANDREA ALARCON abstaining from the vote, the board, Approved 
Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of December 20, 2022.

CONSENT CALENDAR – The following consent items were acted upon by the Board at one time without 

6 of 86



Draft Minutes

Draft Minutes 01.17.2023

discussion.  Upon motion by Board Member BISHOP, seconded by Board Member MANN, and carried by 
the following roll call vote, with six AYES votes by Board Members, ANDREA ALARCON, AUSTIN 
BISHOP,  NEWTON CHELETTE, MARVIN CRIST, RON HAWKINS and KEN MANN, with Board 
members HOWARD HARRIS absent. on the Consent Calendar, as follows:

Agenda Item #2 – Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Received and Filed Monthly Grant Funding Summary.

Agenda Item #3 – Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Received and Filed Monthly Activity Report.

Agenda Item #4 – Receive and file the Financial Report.  This Preliminary Financial Report is provided 
to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at November 30, 2022. 
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Received and filed the Financial Report. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board 
for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at November 30, 2022.

Agenda Item #5 – 1) Approve the FY 22-23 Application for Carl Moyer Program Year 25 Funds and 
authorize its submission to the California Air Resources Board (CARB); 2) Allocate a maximum of 15 
percent of Mobile Source Emissions Reduction (MSER) Program funds to serve as the required match 
funding for the Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment Program (the Moyer Program); 
and 3) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO and staff to execute the agreement, approved as to legal 
form.
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst 

1) Approved the FY 22-23 Application for Carl Moyer Program Year 25 Funds and authorize its 
submission to the California Air Resources Board (CARB); 2) Allocated a maximum of 15 percent of 
Mobile Source Emissions Reduction (MSER) Program funds to serve as the required match funding for 
the Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment Program (the Moyer Program); and 3) 
Authorized the Executive Director/APCO and staff to execute the agreement, approved as to legal form.

Agenda Item #6 – Authorize surplus of District-owned capital equipment and disposal as indicated; 
receive and file the Executive Director’s report of surplus and disposal for non-capital items.
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Authorized surplus of District-owned capital equipment and disposal as indicated; receive and file the 
Executive Director’s report of surplus and disposal for non-capital items.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

DEFERRED ITEMS
None.

NEW BUSINESS

Agenda Item #7 – 1) Award an amount not to exceed $50,800 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions 
Program funds to Cande’s Home Services for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner 
technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if 

7 of 86



Draft Minutes

Draft Minutes 01.17.2023

warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; and 3) Authorize the Deputy Director 
and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel.
Presenter:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 
Chair CRIST opened the public hearing. Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst, presented background information 
and answered questions from the Board. Chair Crist called for public comment, no public comment was made 
in person, or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public hearing. Board Member. Upon motion 
by Board Member CHELETTE, seconded by Board Member MANN, and carried by the following roll call 
vote, with six AYES votes by Board Members, ANDREA ALARCON, AUSTIN BISHOP, NEWTON 
CHELETTE, MARVIN CRIST, RON HAWKINS and KENN MANN, with Board Members HOWARD 
HARRIS absent, the Board, 1) Awarded an amount not to exceed $50,800 in Mobile Source Emission 
Reductions Program funds to Cande’s Home Services for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, 
cleaner technology; 2) Authorized the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if 
warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; and 3) Authorized the Deputy Director and 
staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal 
form by the Office of District Counsel.

Agenda Item #8 - 1) Award an amount not to exceed $55,000 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions 
Program funds to Jaime Coronado for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner 
technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if 
warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; and 3) Authorize the Deputy Director 
and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel.
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst
Chair CRIST opened the public hearing. Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst, presented background information 
and answered questions from the Board. Chair Crist called for public comment, no public comment was made 
in person, or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Board 
Member BISHOP, seconded by Board Member HAWKINS, and carried by the following roll call vote, with 
six AYES votes by Board Members, ANDREA ALARCON, AUSTIN BISHOP, NEWTON CHELETTE, 
MARVIN CRIST, RON HAWKINS and KENN MANN, with Board Members HOWARD HARRIS absent, 
the Board, 1) Awarded an amount not to exceed $55,000 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program 
funds to Jaime Coronado for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) 
Authorized the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 
applicable funding sources become available; and 3) Authorized the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate 
target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the 
Office of District Counsel.

Agenda Item #9 - Receive and file presentation regarding the 2023 update on AVTA Free Fare Subsidies 
Program Seniors & Students.
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst.
Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst, presented background information and answered questions from the board. 
After discussion, Chair CRIST received and filed the presentation regarding the 2023 update on AVTA Free 
Fare Subsidies Program Seniors & Students.

8 of 86



Draft Minutes

Draft Minutes 01.17.2023

Agenda Item #10 - Conduct a public hearing to consider the adoption of the AVAQMD Federal 70 ppb 
Ozone Attainment Plan (Western Mojave Desert Nonattainment Area): a. Open public hearing; b. Receive 
staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a determination that the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of 
Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, 
adopting the AVAQMD Federal 70 ppb Ozone Attainment Plan (Western Mojave Desert Nonattainment 
Area) and directing staff actions. 
Presenter: Barbara Lods, Operations Manager
Barbara Lods, Operations Manager, presented background information and answered questions from the Board. 
Chair Crist called for public comment, no public comment was made in person, or electronically, being none, 
Chair CRIST closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Board Member CHELETTE, seconded by Board 
Member ALARCON, and carried by the following roll call vote, with six AYES votes by Board Members, 
ANDREA ALARCON, AUSTIN BISHOP, NEWTON CHELETTE, MARVIN CRIST, RON HAWKINS 
and KENN MANN, with Board Members HOWARD HARRIS absent, the Board, Conducted a public 
hearing to consider the adoption of the AVAQMD Federal 70 ppb Ozone Attainment Plan (Western Mojave 
Desert Nonattainment Area): a. Opened public hearing; b. Received staff report; c. Received public testimony; 
d. Closed public hearing; e. Made a determination that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waived reading of Resolution; g. Adopted Resolution making appropriate 
findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, adopting the AVAQMD Federal 70 ppb Ozone Attainment Plan 
(Western Mojave Desert Nonattainment Area) and directing staff actions.

Agenda Item #11– Reports.
Governing Board Counsel – 

o  Updated the Board on SB 1439. Also wished a Happy New Year to all. 
Executive Director/APCO –

o Welcomed the new Board Member.
Staff – 

o No report.

Agenda Item #12– Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items.
o No Report.

Agenda Item #13– Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, February 21, 2023.
Being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:32 a.m. to the next regularly scheduled Governing 
Board Meeting of Tuesday, February 21, 2023.

9 of 86



 10 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Grant 

Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act 

does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

10 of 86



Item #3 – Grant Funds Project Summary 
January 2023 

AB 2766 ($4 DMV Fee) 
$655,000 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used “to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles and for related planning, monitoring, enforcement, and 
technical studies necessary for the implementation of the California Clean Air Act of 1988”. 
Funding Limits:  No surplus emission reductions or cost-effectiveness limit requirements. 

AB 923 ($2 DMV Fee) 
$614,000 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used to remediate air pollution harms created by motor vehicles. 
Funding Limits:  Carl Moyer eligible projects; unregulated agriculture vehicles and equipment; school bus 
projects; light-duty vehicle retirement program; and alternative fuel and electric infrastructure projects.  
Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

Carl Moyer Program 
$1,730,061.00 FY 21/22 Allocation 
Carl Moyer Program (CMP) funds provide incentives to gain early or extra emission reductions by retrofitting, 
repowering, or replacing older more polluting engines with newer, cleaner engines including zero and near zero 
emission technologies.  CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, 
locomotives, marine vessels, light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel 
infrastructure projects.  Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

AB 134 Community Air Protection (CAP) Projects 
$855,673 FY 19/20 Allocation 
The purpose of AB 134 funds is to implement projects under the Carl Moyer Program specifically for projects 
that meet the goals of AB 617.  These funds are focused on replacing older polluting engines operating in 
disadvantaged and low-income communities with newer, cleaner engines prioritizing zero-emission projects. 
CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, locomotives, marine vessels, 
light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel infrastructure projects.  Surplus 
emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

Current Balance: $622,647.00 

Current Balance: $287,851.00 

Current Balance: $952,624.00 

Current Balance: $911,329.00 

11 of 86



 12 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Activity 

Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not 

apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

12 of 86



Agenda Item #4

Date: February 15, 2023
Subject: January Operations Activity Report

Permit Inspections - 91
Notices of Violation (NOV) Issued – 0
Vapor Recovery Tests Witnessed – 1
 Complaints – 3
Complaint Investigations – 3
Asbestos Notifications – 16
Asbestos Project Inspections - 0

Active Companies - 275
Active Facilities - 538 
Active Permits - 1138
Certificate of Occupancy/Building Permit Reviews - 1 

CEQA Project Comment Letters - 10

State or Local Air Monitoring Stations (SLAMS) Network Air Monitoring Site:

Lancaster Site (full meteorology, CO, NOx, 03, PM10, PM2)
Full meteorology (exterior temperature, wind speed, wind direction, exterior pressure and relative 
humidity)

Community Sensors:
13 PurpleAir particulate sensors (Del Sur School, Leona Valley Elementary, 
Anaverde Hills, Esperanza Elementary School, Joe Walker Middle School, Desert Willow 
Middle School, Amargosa Creek, Eastside High School, Littlerock High School, Knight 
High School, Westside School District Offices, (2) Wilsona School District. 

13 of 86



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

2/21/2023

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

1/3/2023 Lancaster Antelope Valley Storage

Site Plan Review (SPR 22-15) requesting to develop an RV 
Storage Facility with an office on 9.62 acres. The project 
site is located at 18th Street West and Avenue H in the 
City of Lancaster (APN:3118-006-024). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

1/19/2023 1/12/2023

1/5/2023 Palmdale RV Storage and Self-Storage

Pre-Application 22-024 requesting to develop eight 
buildings totaling 177,783 square feet for an RV storage 
and self-storage facility on a five-acre parcel. This project 
site is located at the northwest corner of Avenue Q and 
Carriage Way (APN: 3003-002-103).  

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 1403-Asbestos
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

1/17/2023 1/23/2023

1/17/2023 Palmdale Palmdale Storage

Pre-Application 23-002 requesting to develop seven 
buildings totaling 101,830 square feet on a 9.70-acre 
parcel. This project site is located at 40420 10th Street 
West in the city of Palmdale, CA (APN: 3005-002-004).  

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

1/31/2023 1/23/2023

1/17/2023 Palmdale Mixed-use Commercial Buildings

Pre-Application 23-003 requesting to develop multiple 
buildings as a mixed-use project on approximately 34 
acres. This project site is located at the NEC of 
Pearblossom Hwy and 25th Street East in the city of 
Palmdale, CA (APN: 3053-009-410). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

1/31/2023 1/23/2023

1/17/2023 Palmdale Apartment Buildings

Pre-Application 23-004 for the request to develop two 
mixed use buildings for multi-family/commercial uses 
totaling 64,810 square feet. This project site is located at 
38713 9th Street East in the city of Palmdale, CA (APN: 
3008-031-008).

Dust Control Signage 
Rule 1403-Asbestos
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

1/17/2023 1/23/2023

1/9/2023 Lancaster Metal Industrial Building

Site Plan Review 22-16 for the request to construct a 
15,000 square foot prefab metal industrial building (shell 
only) on 1.29 acres. This project site is located at the SWC 
of 6th Street West and Avenue L-8 in the city of 
Lancaster, CA (APN: 3128-020-014).

Dust Control Signage
Rule 219-Permitting
CARB Equipment

1/30/2023 1/23/2023

1/11/2023 Lancaster Car Wash and Retail Space

Conditional Use Permit 22-17 for the proposed 
development of a new 5,987 square foot car wash on 
2.22 acres. This project site is located on a vacant lot on 
20th Street West and the AV Freeway (APN: 3123-005-
042).

DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

2/1/2023 1/23/2023

1/24/2023 Palmdale Texas Roadhouse Restaurant

Pre-Application 23-006 requesting to construct an 8,307 
square foot commercial building on a 3.12-acre vacant 
parcel. This project site is located 600 feet south of 
Avenue O-8 on the west side of 10th Street West in the 
city of Palmdale, CA (APN: 3005-038-076).

DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment
EV Charging Grant

2/13/2023 2/2/2023

14 of 86



1/23/2023 Lancaster J90 South Battery Storage Project

Conditional Use Permit 23-001 requesting to construct 
and operate a battery energy storage facility on 19.6 
acres. The project site is located on 90th Street West, 
between Avenue J & Avenue K in the City of Lancaster, 
CA (APNs: 3203-034-010, 3203-034-011). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

2/13/2023 2/2/2023

1/26/2023 Lancaster 22nd Street Self-Storage

Site Plan Review 23-001 for the proposed development of 
a self-storage facility with Building A (3 stories) to include 
office area and storage units, and Building B (1 story) all 
storage units on 1.89 acres. This project site is located at 
22nd Street West & Avenue L in the city of Lancaster, CA 
(APN: 3109-017-071).

DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

2/16/2023 1/26/2023

15 of 86



 16 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve payments to 

City of Lancaster in the amount of $196,029.15 for FY23 Quarter 2 expenditures. Find that 

the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret 

Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

16 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #5

DATE: February 21, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of 
$196,029.15 for FY23 Quarter 2 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality 
Act does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  The District contracts for services with City of Lancaster; an invoice for 
services is presented for payment.

BACKGROUND:  Key Expenses: Staffing expenses of $178,208.27.

The AVAQMD contracts with the City of Lancaster for essential executive, administrative, and 
fiscal services. 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The AVAQMD Governing Board must authorize 
all payments to the City of Lancaster.

REVIEW BY OTHERS: This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as to 
legal form; and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, on or before February 13, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  The contract and direct expenditure amounts are part of the approved 
District budget for FY23. No change in appropriations is anticipated as a result of the approval 
of this item.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO

17 of 86



18 of 86



 19 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: This Preliminary 

Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal 

status of the District at December 31, 2022. Find that the California Environmental Quality 

Act does not apply to this item Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

19 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM  #6

DATE:  February 21, 2023.

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality 
Act does not apply to this item

SUMMARY:  This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for 
information concerning the fiscal status of the District at December 31, 2022. 

BACKGROUND:  The Financial Reports for December provide financial and budgetary 
performance information for the District for the period referenced.  

BALANCE SHEET. The balance sheet summarizes the District’s financial position on 
December 31, 2022.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES. A summary of all District revenue 
and related expenditures incurred in the day to day administration of District Operations.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY.  The target variance for December is 50%.  

The District Wide report details revenue and expenses for the District’s operating 
account and grant funds. Contracted Services reports the expenses made by the City of 
Lancaster and passed through to the District including salaries. Report Recap 
consolidates both reports.

BANK REGISTERS. This report details the Districts bank activity.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as 
to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO (AVAQMD) on or about 
February 13, 2023.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

20 of 86



21 of 86



22 of 86



23 of 86



24 of 86



25 of 86



26 of 86



27 of 86



28 of 86



29 of 86



30 of 86



 31 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Receive and file the 

annual financial audit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is complete and presented for review. Find 

that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item. Presenter:  Bret 

Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

31 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 7

DATE:  February 21, 2023

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental 
Quality Act does not apply to this item

SUMMARY:  The annual financial audit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is complete and 
presented for review and to receive and file.  

BACKGROUND:  Fedak & Brown LLP of Riverside performed the audit services for 
the District for the third year of the District’s second three-year engagement. They 
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; 
and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. 

In their opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major 
fund of the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District, as of June 30, 2022, and 
the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The audit process is complete and the 
information is provided to the Governing Board for review to receive and file.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as 
to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO on or about February 15, 
2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  Funds were budgeted for the service provided and sufficient 
funds were available to pay the obligation.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, with a representative from 
Fedak & Brown. 

32 of 86



DR
AF
T

33 of 86



DR
AFAF
T

AFAF

34 of 86



DR
AF
T

35 of 86



Government Auditing Standards DR
AF
T

36 of 86



DR
AF
T

37 of 86



DR
AF
T

38 of 86



Opinions

Basis for Opinions 

Government Auditing 
Standards

Emphasis of Matter 

Leases

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
DR
AF
T

39 of 86



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements, continued

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

DR
AF
T

40 of 86



Required Supplementary Information 

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
Trdsds

Government Auditing Srnment Auditing

41 of 86



accrual basis of accounting

net position

financial position increases or decreases
financial health

overall financial health

DR
AF
T

ntingnting

42 of 86



Governmental funds governmental 
activities

near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, balances of spendable resources

governmental funds
governmental activities

governmental funds governmental activities

DR
AF
T

RR

43 of 86



DR
AF
TTTFTFTFTFTAFAFFFRARA

44 of 86



DR
AF
T

AFAFAFAFAAAARRRARA

45 of 86



DR
AF
T

46 of 86



DR
AF
T

47 of 86



DR
AF
TT

48 of 86



DR
AF
T

49 of 86



DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFTFTAAAFAFFFAAAFAFRARARARARARARARA

50 of 86



FTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTAAAFAFFFAAAAAFAFAFAF

51 of 86



basic financial statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

economic resources 

Fund Financial Statements 

DR
AF
T

mentsment

economic resouconomic resou

52 of 86



Fund Financial Statements, continued 

current financial resources

DR
AF
T

53 of 86



Leases.

Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period

Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements,

Omnibus 2020

DR
AF
TAccounting for Interest Ccounting for

uidance Contained in dance Contained in 

54 of 86



Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 

DR
AF
Tment of Intement 

55 of 86



DR
AF
T

56 of 86



 – 

net investment in capital assets restrictedDR
AF
T

 –  

pitpit

57 of 86



Fund Balance Policy 

DR
AF
T

58 of 86



Authorized Deposits and Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk 

deposits

investments 

DR
AF
TTTTFTFTFTF

ments ments 

59 of 86



Custodial Credit Risk, continued

Interest Rate Risk 

Credit Risk 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

60 of 86



Inter-fund Operational Transfers DR
AF
TTTTTTT

RARARARARRRRRR
Transfers Transf

61 of 86



Woelfl Family Trust 

DR
AF
TTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT

RARARARADRDRDD

62 of 86



DR
AF
TFTFTFTFTFTFT

63 of 86



Leases

DR
AF
TTTTTTT

64 of 86



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91 

Conduit Debt Obligations

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94 

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements

ting Standards Board Stating Standards Board S

rangementsrangements

65 of 86



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94, continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96 

Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97 

Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.

DR
AF
T

tion-Bastion-B

s Board Statement No. 97s Board Statement

CertCe
Internal Revenue Codeernal Revenue Code

ments No. 41 and No. ments No. 41 an 84,

66 of 86



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97, continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 99 

Omnibus 2022

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 100 

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62. 

DDR
AF
T

Statement No. 99 tatement No. 99 

Omnibus 202mnibus 202

RARARADRDRDDDD

67 of 86



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 100, continued 

accounting changes

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 101 

Compensated Absences

Grant Awards 

Litigation DR
ARARA
FTTT

o. 101 o. 101

Compensated AbsencCompensated Absenc

AF
T

AFAFRARA

68 of 86



DR
AF
T

69 of 86



DR
AF
T

70 of 86



DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTAAAAFFFF

71 of 86



TTTTTT

72 of 86



DR
AF
TTTTTTT

73 of 86



DR
AF
TTTTTTT

74 of 86



DR
AF
T

75 of 86



DR
AF
T

76 of 86



DR
AF
T

77 of 86



DR
AF
T

78 of 86



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
TT

G

TFTFTAFAFRA
F

RARARAll

DRDRDRDRDD

79 of 86



Government Auditing Standards, 

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
T

80 of 86



 81 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: 1) Award an amount 

not to exceed $31,500 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds to 

Michelle Royal for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with a new, zero-emissions 

electric tractor; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the 

funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) 

Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical 

project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of 

District Counsel; and 4) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does 

not apply to this item. Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

81 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 8

DATE:  February 21, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Award an amount not to exceed $31,500 in Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds to Michelle Royal for the replacement of 
an older diesel tractor with a new, zero-emissions electric tractor; 2) Authorize the 
Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 
applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff 
to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) Find that the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  This item awards an amount not to exceed $31,500 of Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds to Michelle Royal for the replacement of 
a 2004 diesel tractor with a new, zero-emissions electric tractor that exceeds the current 
emission standards.

BACKGROUND:  AVAQMD received an application from Michelle Royal for grant 
funding to replace an older diesel tractor with a new, zero-emissions electric tractor.  The 
proposed tractor currently operates approximately 700 hours a year for maintenance and 
upkeep on her ranch located in Leona Valley.  Applicant is not subject to any regulation 
and proposes voluntary participation in the off-road equipment replacement program to 
reduce emissions by early retirement of an older, higher polluting diesel tractor and 
replacing it with zero-emissions technology that exceeds the current emission standards.  
Staff has evaluated the project for eligibility pursuant to the guidelines and finds the 
proposed project eligible for 80% percent of the cost of replacement equipment.  
Retirement of the proposed project produces an estimated 0.52 tons/yr. early emission 
reductions with a 3-year project life.  Early fleet turnover provides emission reductions 
that help the Valley towards attainment of the national ambient air quality standards.

cc: Bret Banks
Barbara Lods
Julie McKeehan

82 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 8 PAGE 2

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Governing Board approval is needed for the 
use of District funds.  Additionally, Governing Board authorization is needed for the 
Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate and execute an agreement with the grant 
recipient.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison E. Burns, Special Counsel 
to the Governing Board, as to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO – 
on or before February 14, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  Funding is available from the District’s Mobile Source Emission 
Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds.

INTERESTED PARTIES: Michelle Royal

PRESENTER:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst

83 of 86



 84 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: 1) Award an amount 

not to exceed $42,138 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to 

Robert Dedmore for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner 

technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding 

source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize 

the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details 

and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 

4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this 

item. Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

84 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 9

DATE:  February 21, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Award an amount not to exceed $42,138 in Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to Robert Dedmore for the replacement of 
an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive 
Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 
applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff 
to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  This item awards an amount not to exceed $42,138 of Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds to Robert Dedmore for the replacement 
of a 2002 diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology certified to the Final Tier 4/current 
emission standards.

BACKGROUND:  AVAQMD received an application from Robert Dedmore for grant 
funding to replace an older diesel tractor.  The proposed tractor currently operates 
approximately 795 hours a year for maintenance and upkeep on his 10-arce ranch located 
in Leona Valley.  Applicant is not subject to any regulation and proposes voluntary 
participation in the off-road equipment replacement program to reduce emissions by 
early retirement of an older, higher polluting diesel tractor and replacing it with new, 
cleaner technology that meets the current emission standards.  Staff has evaluated the 
project for eligibility pursuant to the guidelines and finds the proposed project eligible for 
80% percent toward the replacement equipment.  Retirement of the proposed project 
produces an estimated 0.43 tons/yr. early emission reductions with a 3-year project life.  
Early fleet turnover provides emission reductions that help the Valley towards attainment 
of the national ambient air quality standards.

cc: Bret Banks
Barbara Lods
Julie McKeehan

85 of 86



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 9 PAGE 2

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Governing Board approval is needed for the 
use of District funds.  Additionally, Governing Board authorization is needed for the 
Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate and execute an agreement with the grant 
recipient.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison E. Burns, Special Counsel 
to the Governing Board, as to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO – 
on or before February 14, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  Funding is available from the District’s Mobile Source Emission 
Reductions Program (AB 923) funds.

INTERESTED PARTIES: Robert Dedmore

PRESENTER:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst

86 of 86


	February 21, 2023 Regular Meeting
	BOARD MEMBERS
	CALL TO ORDER  10:00 A.M.
	Pledge of Allegiance.
	Roll Call
	Items with potential Conflict of Interests — If you believe you have a conflict of interest, please recuse yourself at the appropriate time. If you have a question regarding a potential conflict of interest, please contact District Counsel.
	PUBLIC COMMENT

	CLOSED SESSION
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of January 17, 2023. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item
	Rough Draft Minutes 01.17.2023.docx (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01. Item #3 Grants Fund Summary January 2023.pdf (1 page)

	Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01. Jan 2023 Meeting Operations Activity Report.docx (1 page)
	02. Monthly CEQA Report FEB Board 2023.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of $196,029.15 for FY23 Quarter 2 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01. Minute Item COL Qtr 2 Invoice.docx (1 page)
	02. FY23 Quarter 2 Invoice.pdf (1 page)

	This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at December 31, 2022. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01. Minute Item Finance Report 12.31.2022.docx (1 page)
	02. Financial Report 12.31.2022.pdf (10 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10



	ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
	DEFERRED ITEMS
	NEW BUSINESS
	Receive and file the annual financial audit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is complete and presented for review. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item. Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01. Audit FY2.docx (1 page)
	02. AVAQMD Financial Statements.pdf (48 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48


	1) Award an amount not to exceed $31,500 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds to Michelle Royal for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with a new, zero-emissions electric tractor; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item. Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst.
	01. Michelle Royal Tractor Repl. Project item.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	1) Award an amount not to exceed $42,138 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to Robert Dedmore for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item. Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst.
	01. Robert Dedmore Tractor Repl. Project item.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2




	Mailed & Posted on:


